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Africzlfﬁ
Chairman’s Statement

For The Year Ended 31 October 2017

Overview

The 2017 financial year has seen the positive results of the significant restructuring of the business announced last
year. Revenues have grown 33% to £2,1 million {2016; 29% growth to £1.6 million) This revenue growth was
exclusively delivered from Anglo African Agriculture’s {“AAA") 100% owned Dynamic Intertrade Ltd (Dynamic
Intertrade).

The Company has consolidated its production capaclty to around 250 tonnes per month at its modern 3,000m?
FS5C compliant facility in Cape Town, South Africa. Dynamic Intertrade manufactures, imports and distributes
herbs, spices and seasonings for the food manufacturing sector. The upgrades to the spice milling machines and
associated infrastructure were completed and fully operational by the end of February 2017. These upgrades,
coupled with operational efficlencies, assisted In the Increase of gross profits by 60% to £517,747, and a gross
margin of 24.3% {2016: decreased 11% to £323,079, gross margin 20.1%)

Administrative expenses increased to £1,050,929 from £665,228 mainly as a result of increased operational salary
expenses, the Impairment of the loan to the now disposed joint venture and admission expenses related to issuing
equity for working capital, expansion and the acquisition of a 46.8% investment in an assoclate.

¢ in the prior year the Company expected to complete the sale of the loss making Guar Bean Joint venture
company, African Projects and Ventures (“APY*), for clrca.£80,000, however the purchasers were unable
to finance the purchase and net £73,656 has been impaired in the current year.

* In line with the Group strategy, an acquisition of 46.8% In the South African based Dynamic Intertrade
Agrl (Pty} Ltd was concluded during the year. In the period since acquisition the share of loss from
assoclates was £9,954 (2016: £ nll).

The consolidated loss for the year refiects the steps taken to re-position the Company for continued growth into
the future.

Prospects
Our core business continues to look strong into the 2018 year. The Company continues to add new customers as it

further develops the Company’s specialty spice blends, new ranges of BBQ spices, curry blends and beef jerky
blends for those markets.

The board has reviewed, and continues to focus on reviewing, a number of new and exclting potential acquisitions
to add value to AAA and its shareholders.

Thanks

The directors would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, staff and consultants and customers
for thelr continued support, and | look forward to chairing this exciting company as it grows and moves forward In
2018,

David fenigds
Non-Executive Chalrman
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Strategic Report

For The Year Ended 31 October 2017

Overview

The primary objective of the strategic report Is to provide information for the shareholders and help them to
assess how the directors have performed their duty, under section 172 of the Act, to promote the success of the
company and to provide context for the related financlal statements.

The duty of a director, as set out In section 172 of the Act, Is to act In the way he considers, in good falth, would be
most likely to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing so have
regard {amongst other matters) to:

{a) the likely conseguences of any decision in the long term;

{b) the interests of the company's employees;

{c) the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

{d) the impact of the company's operations on the community and the envirenment;

{e) the desirabliity of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
{f) the need to act falrly as between members of the company’.

Review of the Group’s Business

Dynamic Intartrade (Pty) Ltd ("Dynamic®) is based in a modern 3,000m* FSSC compliant facility In Cape Town,
South Africa and Is Involved In the importation, milling, blending and packaging of agricultural products that
include herbs, splces, seasonings and confectionary for both the domestic and export markets. Dynamic’s
commercial activities fall Into two principal categories: milling and/or blending of herbs and splces and buik trading
ofagi'iculmral products.

Dynamlc recorded an Increase In top line revenue of 33% to £2.1 million In the year ended 31st October 2017
(2016: Increase of 29% to £1.6 milllon). This Increase was largely dise to stronger orders from customers for our
core spice [ines of paprika and chilll based products, but also the ability of the company to source substantially
more raw products thanks to the money raised by the Company during the year and the move towards Introducing
new batch blended spice ranges for the fish and meat food manufacturing sector.

Gross Profits Increased 60% to £517,747 (2016: decreased 11% to £323,079) and represents a 24.4% gross margin
(2016: 20.1%) malnly as a result of the positive changes In product mix,

Underlying losses for the year increased to £532,509 (2016: £339,372) due to higher administrative expenses.
Administration expenses Increased significantly due to admission expenses of £89,895 {2016: £ nil), the
impalrment of the loan to African projects £73,566 (2016: £ nll) and operational salarles Increasing to £329,058
{2016: £236,879).

As announced In the prior year, the AAA board had decided on the disposal of the Guar bean venture, African
Projects & Ventures (Pty) Ltd {“APV"), which resulted in a loss on disposal of £73,566 (2016: £ 18,853) taken to
income and expense.

In line with the Group strategy, an acquisition of 46.8% In the South African based Dynamic Interirade Agri (Pty)
Ltd was concluded during the year. In the current year since acquisition the loss from assoclates was £9,954 (2016:
£ nil).

Our core business continues to look strong Into 2018. The Company continues to add new customers as it further
develops the Company’s speclaity spice blends, new ranges of BEQ spices, curry blends and beef Jerky blends for
those markets.
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Africah
Strategic Report (Continued)

For The Year Ended 31 October 2017

Financing

On 17 March 2017, AAA ralsed £100,000, through the placing of 7,692,308 new ordinary shares of 0.1p each in the
Company at a price of G.5p per placing Share. The proceeds from this placing were used to support working capital
requirements at the Company’s subsidiary, Dynamic Intertrade, during a period of expansion In this business
through diversification of both its product range, a move to higher margin products and the expansion of its dient
base.

On 26 April 2017, the Company successfully completed a placing of 18,500,000 new ordinary shares at a placing
price of 0.65 pence per share to ralse gross proceeds of £120,250. The proceeds of this placing were used to satisfy
the Company’s creditors and provide the necessary working capital to continue growing Dynamic Intertrade’s core
business.

Although the placing Shares have been allotted, because the combined number of shares placed In 2016 and 2017
comprises more than 10% of the Company’s issued share capitsl, Admission of the placing shares requires the
publication of a prospectus In accordance with Prospectus Rule 1.2.1. This Prospectus was published on 22 March
2017.

Acquisition Strategy

The Directors’ strategy Is to develop the business of the Group both arganically and by acquisition. it Is intended
that future acquisitions may be made by the Company that will be complementary to the Group’s businesses and
relate to production, transportation and trading of food products in sub-Saharan Africa, in¢luding the acquisition of
land for food production. The Company has access to a range of prospects through tha Directors’ extensive contact
network and actively reviews acquisition opportunities on an ongoing basis.

In line with the strategy, on 3 November 2016 the group acquired 46.8% in the South African based, Dynamic
Intertrade Agri {Pty) Ltd (“DIA”"), which, since acquisition has been reflected as an investment in assoclate.

Similarly, on 22 November 2016, the group agreed to dispose of its 49.9% Interest in Africa Projects and Ventures,
a joint venture with Lamberti based In South Africa. On 31 October 2017 the company’s wholly owned subsidiary
Dynamic Intertrade {Pty} Limited ("Dynamic") entered Into the Sale and Purchase Agreement in terms of which
Dynamic will sell the 49.9% of the allotted and issued share capltal of APV African Projects and Vantures (Pty)
Limited to Misty Rose Properties 11 CC, a company owned by Mr G Roach for the total sum of ZAR1.00.

Key Performance Indicators
31 October 31 October
2017 2016
£ £
Turnover 2,126,797 1,605,219
Gross Profit 517,747 323,079
Cash at bank and in hand 75,952 268,790
Underlying operating loss (369,70D) {339,372)
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Africah
Strategic Report (Continued)

For The Year Ended 31 October 2017

Loan Facility

Following acquisition, AAA lent Dynamic £500,000 repayable over a period of five years from the first anniversary
of drawdown. During the current year AAA advanced Dynamic £147,902 (2016: £100,000]). The loan bears interest
at 2% above LIBOR. Under the Loan Facility, AAA nominated a director to the board of Dynamic.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Directors consider the following risk factors to be of particular relevance to the Group’s activities. it should be
noted that the list is not exhaustive and that other risk factors not presently known or currently deemed
Irmmaterial may apply. The risk factors are summarised below:

i. Development Risk

The Group's development will be, in part, dependent on the ability of the Directors to continue to expand the
current business and klentify suitable investment opportunities and to implement the Group’s strategy. There is
na assurance that the Group will be successful In acquiring sultable Investments.

ll. Sector Risk
The agriculture sector Is a highly competitive market and many of the competitors will have greater financial and
other resources than the Company and 2s a result may be in a better position to compete for opportunities.

The development of agricultural enterprises involves significant uncertainties and risks Including unusual climatic
conditions such as drought, improper use of pesticides, availablility of labour and seasonality of produce, any cne
of which could result In damage to, or destruction of crops, environmental damage or pollution. Each of these
could have a materfal adverse Impact on the business, operations and financlal performance of the Group.

The market price of agricuttural products and crops Is volatile and affected by numerous factors which are beyond
the Group's control.

These include international supply and demand, the level of consumer product demand, international economic
trends, currency exchange rate fluctuations, the level of Interest rates, the rate of Inflation, global or reglonal
political events, as well as a range of other market forces. Sustalned downward movements In agricultural prices
could render less economic, or un-economic, any development or investing activities to be undertaken by the
Group. Certain agricultural projects Invalve high eapital costs and assoclated risks. Unless such projects enjay long
term returns, their profitability will be uncertain resulting In potentially high investment risk.

iii. Political and Regulatory Risk

African countries experience varying degrees of political instabllity. There can be no assurance that political
stability will persist in those countries where the Group may have operations going forward. in the event of
political Instabllity or changes In government policies In those countries where the Group may operate, the
operations and financlal condition of the Group could be adversely affected.

iv. Environmental Risks and Hazards

All phases of the Group’s operations are subject to environmental regulation In the areas in which it operates.
Envircnmental legislation Is evolving in 2 manner that may require stricter standards and enforcement, increased
fines and penalties for non-compliance, more stringent environmental assessments of proposed projects and a
heightened degree of responsibllity for companies and thelr officers, directors and employees.
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For The Year Ended 31 October 2017

There is no assurance that existing or future environmental regulation will not materially adversely affect the
Group’s business, financlal condition and results of operations. Environmental hazards may exist on the properties
on which the Group holds interests that are unknown to the Group at present. The Board manages this risk by
working with environmental consultants and by engaging with the relevant govemmental depariments and other
concerned stakehalders.

v. Internal Control and Financlal Risk Management

The Board has averall responsibllity for the Group’s systems of Internal control and for reviewing their
effectiveness. The Group malntalns systems which are designed to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
agalnst material loss and to manage rather than eliminate risk.

s The key features of the Group’s systems of internal control are as follows:

= Management structure with clearly identified responsibilities;

e  Production of timely and comprehensive historical management information presented to the Board;
+ Detalled budgeting and forecasting;

+ Day to day hands on Involvement of the Executive Directors and Senior Management; and

e Regular board and meetings and discussions with the Non-executive directors.

The Group’s activities expose It to 2 number of flnancial risks incuding cash flow risk, liquldity risk and foreign
currency risk.

vi. Environmental Policy

The Group is aware of the potential impact that its subsidlary and assoclate companles may have on the
environment. The Group ensures that it complies with all local regulatory requirements and seeks to implement a
best practice approach to managing environmental aspects.

The wholly owned subsidiary, Dynamic intertrade operates a Food Safety System Certification (“FSSC”) compliant
facility in Cape Town, The FSSC provides a framework for effectively managing the organization's food safety
responsibilitles and. is fully recognized by the Globa! Food Safety Initlative (GFSI) and is based on existing ISO
Standards.

vil. Health and Safety
The Group’s aim s to achieve and maintaln a high standard of workplace safety. In order to achieve this objective
the Group provides ongoing training and support to employees and sets demanding standards for workplace

safety,

viil. Financing Risk

The development of the Group’s business may depend upon the Group’s abllity to abtain financing primarily
through the raising of new equity capital or debt. The Group’s ability to ralse further funds may be affected by the
success of existing and acquired investments. The Group may not be successful in procuring the requisite funds on
terms which are acceptable to it (or at alf) and, £ such funding is unavailable, the Group may be required o reduce
the scope of lts investments or the anticipated expansion. Further, Shareholders’ holdings of Ordinary Shares may
be materially diluted if debt financing is not available.
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Strategic Report {Continued)

For The Year Ended 31 October 2017

bx. CreditRisk
The directors' have reviewed the forecasts prepared by both AAA and Dynamic and believe that Dynamic has
adequate resources avallable to meet its obligatlons to make capital repayments of the loan to AAA.

In the event that Dynamics’ trading performance is below that forecast, AAA will exercise a degree of flexibllity on
the repayment timetable. With the Dynamic tumover increasing and the Group forecasting profitability there is no
requirement for any impairment charge.

X  Liguidity Risk

The Directors have reviewed the working capital requirements of both AAA and Dynamic Intertrade and DIA and
belleve that, following stress tests and varlance analysis on the farecasts, there is sufficient working capltal to fund
the business while expanding turover and achieving sustainable profitability.

xl. Market Risk
The group's investments in an associate company comprise a non-controlling shareholding In an unlisted company.
The shares are not readily tradable and any monetisation of the shares Is dependent on finding a willing buyer.

xil. Capital Risk

The Group manages its capital resources to ensure that entitles in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern, while maximising shareholder return.

The capltal structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to shareholders, comprising issued share capital
and reserves. The availability of new capital will depend on many factors Including a positive operating
environment, positive stock market conditions, the Group’s track record, and the experience of management.
There are no externally Imposed capltal requirements. The Directors are confident that adequate cash resources
exist or will be made avallable to finance operations but controls over expenditure are carefully managed.

Going Concern

These consolidated financial statements are prepared on the going concern basls. The going concern basis assumes
that the Group will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to realise Its assets and
discharge lts llabilities and commitments In the normal course of business. The Group has incurred significant
operating losses and negative cash flows from operations as the Group continued to expand its operations during
the year under review,

During the year, the Group raised £113,035 In net funding through share subscriptions to fund further investment
in Dynamic Intertrade in order to Improve preduction efficlencles and to fund working capital,

Immediately subsequent to the year-end, the Group raised a further £150,000 through the further issue of shares.
There remains an active and very liquid market for the Group’s shares.

The Diractors have prepared cash flow forecasts for the period ended 31 October 2018, tzking Into account
forecast operating cash flows and capital expenditure requirements for Dynamic Intertrade, avallable working
capital and forecast expenditure for the rest of the Group including overheads and other costs. The forecasts
include additional funding requirements which the directors believe will be met.



Africah
Strategic Report {Continued)

For The Year Ended 31 October 2017

In the event that Dynamic Intertrade fails to meet revenue predictions and any other relevant risk factors arise, the
Group will need to obtaln additional debt finance or equity to fund its operations for the perlod to 31 October
2018. The cash flow forecast is dependent on production targets being met at Dynamic Intertrade, maintaining the
invoice financing arrangements, generating future saies and the selling prices remaining stable during the period to
31 October 2018.

After careful consideration of the matters set out above, the Directors are of the opinlon that the Group will be
able to undertake its planned activities for the period to 31 October 2018 from production and fram additional
fund raising and have prepared the consofidated financial statements on the golng concern basis. Nevertheless
due to the uncertainties inherent In meeting Its revenue predictions and obtaining additional fund ralsing there
can be no certainty in these respects. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that would result If
the Group jvas unable to continue as a golng concern.

On behalf of the Board
David Lenigas, Chairman
23 February 2018
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Africah
Directors’ Report

For The Year Ended 31 October 2017

The Directors present their Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 October 2017.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Group in the year was investing and trading in the agriculture and ancillary sectors in
Africa.

Investing Policy

AAA was established as a means tn invest in or acquire companies engaged in the agriculture and anclllary sectors
In Africa. The Directors Intend to use their collective experience to Identify appropriate Investment opportunities
In the production, transportation and trading of food products.

Directors

The following Directors have held office In the year:
Andrew Monk

George Roach

David Lenigas

Robert Scott

Matthew Bonner (Appointed 1 May 2017)

Andrew Monk, Non- Executive Director

Andrew has a successful stock broking career spanning 30 years. In that time he has built up strong relationships
with many major UK institutions. He was employed by Hoare Govett ABN AMRO for 11 years before founding Oriel
Securities as Joint CEQ. Andrew later hecame CEQ of Blue Oar Plc, and Chlef Executive of VSA Capltal, an
investment banking and Institutional broking firm focussed on natural rescurces, Including agriculture.

George Roach, Non-Executive Director

George Roach Is an experlenced, senior business leader and entrepreneur who has spent his career In the
resources sector mainly in Sub-Saharan Africa. He Is, Inter alia, currently Chief Executive Office of Premler African
Minerals Inc., an AIM quoted, African rescurces group of companles.

David Lenigas, Non-Executive Chairman

David Lenigas Is an experienced executive and entrepreneur with a wide range of board experience In both public
and private companies. He has an extensive knowledge of the African food manufacturing, processing and
marketing sector having previously served as the Executive Chalrman of Lonrho Plc and Is currently the Executive
Chalrman of food logistics and marketing group AfriAg Global Plc.

Robert Scott, Executive Director

Rob has over 20 years of finance experlence, with the last ten years specifically focused in Africa within the mining
industry and general investments. He has held executive and senior positions with a number of companies, as well
as having served on both public and private company boards, He has been involved In companles with locations In
South Africa, Angola, Mozambique, Zimbabwe, DRC, CAR, Tanzania, Kenya and Namibia amongst others. Rob has
also previously been involved in mining, hotels, agriculture and construction industries.

Matthew Bonner, Non-Executive Director

Matthew Bonner has significant financlal leadership experlence within the mining, energy and agriculture sectors.
He Is currently Chief Operating Officer at EAS Advisors LLC, a New York based corporate advisory firm focused an
supporting public and private companies operating In the natural resource and commodity sectors In emerging
markets.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

For The Year Ended 31 October 2017

Directors’ remuneration, shareholding and options
The Directors’ remuneration in the year ended 31 October 2017 Is set out In note 7 of the accounts.

Sharcholding
As at 31 October 2017, the Directors of the Company held the following shares:
2017 2017 2016 2016
Director Shareholding Percentage of the Shareholding Percentage of the
Company’s Ordinary Company’s Ordinary
Share Capltal Share Capltal
George Roach* 33,751,333 16.31% 26,058,025 14,4%
David Lenlgas 22,388,000 10.82% 22,388,000 12,4%
Andrew Monk** 12,126,761 5.86% 2,000,000 1,1%
Robert Scott 1,693,078 0.82% i
Matthew Bonner 746,269 0.36% _
Nefi Herbert**#* - ‘ 11,000,000 6,1%

* 16,288,646 of these shares are held by or on behalf of Corestar Holdings Ltd and 5,000,000 of these shares are
held by or on behalf of Coc’Roach Limited. Corestar Holdings Ltd Is a BV company which Is whally-owned by the
Corestar STAR Trust, a trust established for the furtherance of certain purposes which could include the provision
of benefits to George Roach and his famlly, at the discretion of the trustees of the trust. Coc’roach Limited Is
owned by the Coc’roach Trust. The Coc’roach Trust Is a partlai discretionary trust pursuant to the terms of which
George Roach and his family may fall within the class of potential beneficiaries.

**Andrew Mork's entire shareholding is held within his SIPP (Fitel Nominees Limited) and Hargreave Hale
Nominees Limited

*%# Nell Herbert resigned as a Director on 05 September 2016,

Share options
As at 31 October 2017 the Directors share options were:
2017 2017 2016 2016
Options at 1p Options @0.55p Options at 1p Options @0.55p
Dlirector {expiring 5 {explring 5 (expiring 5 (expiring 5
September 2022) September 2022) September September 2022)
2022)

George Roach 1,839,046 2,000,000 1,839,046 2,000,000
Andrew Monk 1,839,046 2,000,000 1,839,046 2,000,000
Robert Scott 1,000,000 . 1,000,000
Matthew Bonner 3,600,000 .
Sub-total 8,278,092 4,000,000 4,678,092 4,000,000
Nell Herbert* 1,839,046 2,000,000 1,839,046 2,000,000
Total 10,117,138 £,000,000 5,517,138 6,000,000

The total warrants and share options outstanding at 31 October 2017 were 23,717,514 (2016 ~ 29,994,844), Refer
to note 22 for more detall.
* Nell Herbert resigned as a Director on 05 September 2016.
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Directors’ Report {Continued)

For The Year Ended 31 October 2017
Dividends

No dividends will be distributed for the current year (2016 - nil).
Supplier Payment Policy

It Is the Group’s payment policy to pay its suppliers in conformance with Industry norms. Trade payables are pald
In a timely manner within contractual terms, which Is generally 30 to 45 days from the date an Involce is received.

Substantial Interests

The Group has been informed of the following shareholdings that represent 3% or more of the Issued Ordinary
Shares of the Company as at 21 February 2018:

2017 2017 2016 2016
Shareholder Shareholding Percentage of the Shareholding Percentage of
Company’s the Company's
Ordinary Share Ordinary Share
Capltal Capital
HSBC Global Custody Nominee 22,388,060 9.9% 22,388,060 12.4%
Vidacos Nominees Limited 13,462,687 5.9% 13,452,687 7.5%
5VS (Nominees) Limited 11,735,541 5.2% - -
Huntress (Cl) Nominees Limited 11,000,000 4.9% 11,000,000 6.1%
Hargreaves Lansdown
(Nominees) Limited 10,597,855 4.7% -
Hargreave Hale Nominees
Limited 10,126,761 4.5%
Barclays Direct Investing 9,801,136 4.3%
Nominees Limited
Lynchwood Nominees Limited 9,371,343 4.1%
Vidacos Nominees Limited 8,586,338 3.8% 8,596,338 4.7%
JIM Nominees Limited 8,575,072 3.8%
;';‘g’:‘ Securities Nominees 8,500,000 3.7% 9,000,000 5.0%
ZRH Nominees (0105) LTD 7,692,308 2.4% -
Rulegale Nominees Limited 7,500,000 3.3% 7,500,000 4.1%
Auditors

Jeffreys Henry LLP has expressed its willingness to continue In office and a resolution to reappoint them will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting.
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Directors’ Report {Continued)

For The Year Ended 31 October 2017

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and reguiations. Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare the financlal statements in accordance with
International Financlal Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted for use in the European Unlon. Under company law
the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Company and the Group for
that year. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

« Select sultable accounting policles and then apply them consistently;
= Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s State whether the Company flnancial statements have been prepared In accardance with IFRS as adopted
by the European Unlon subject to any material departures disclosed and explained In the Financlal
Statements;

» Prepare the financial statements on the golng concern basis unless it Is Inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue In business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adecuate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explaln the
Company's transactions, disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financlal position of the Company and
the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and ather Irregularities,

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financlal Information
Included on the Group’s website.

Statement of Disclosure to Auditors

Each person who Is a Director at the date of approval of this Annual Report conflrms that:

® So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit Information of which the Company’s auditors
are unaware; and

s Each Director has taken all the steps he ought as Director, In order to make himself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that Information.

& Each Director Is aware of and concurs with the information included in the Strategic Report.
Branches Outside the UK

The Group head office Is in London and both the Dynamic Intertrade Pty Limited and Dynamic Intertrade Agri {Pty)
Ltd offices are located in South Africa.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

For The Year Ended 31 October 2017

Past Balance Sheet Events
Further information on events after the reporting date is set out in note 25,

The Directors’ have chosen to produce a Strategic Report that discloses a fair review of the Group's business, the
key performances metrics that the Directors review along with a review of the key risks to the business,

In accordance with Section 414C {1) of the Companles Act 2006, the group chooses to report the review of the
buslness, the future outiook and the risks and uncertainties faced by the Company in The Strateglc Report on page
5.

Strategic Report

In accordance with Section 414C (1) of the Companies Act 2006, the group chooses to report the review of the
business, the future outiook and the risk and uncertainties faced by the Company In The Strategic report on page 5
to 10.

On §ehalFof the Board
David Lenigas, Chalrman
23 February 2018
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

For The Year Ended 31 October 2017

Introduction
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The information included in this report is not subject to audit other than where specificafly indicated.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee consists of Andrew Monk and George Roach, This committee's primary function is to
review the performance of executive directors and senior employees and set thelr remuneration and other terms
of employment.

The committee is also responsible for administering any share option scheme. The table indicates share options

held by the current directors, directors of the subsldiary and former directors of the company.

2017 2017 2016 2016

Director Warrants Options Warrants Options
George Roach I 3,839,046 3,839,046
Andrew Monk : 5,839,046 3,839,046
Robert Scott 1,000,000 1,000,000
Matthew Bonner 3,600,000 -
Mark Niglson 3,000,000 3,000,000
Totals 15,278,092

The Company has one executive director

The remuneration policy

I Is the alm of the commitiee to remunerate executive directors competitively and to reward performance, The
remuneration committee determines the company's policy for the remuneration of executlve directors, having
regard to the UK Corporate Governance Code and Iits provisions on directors' remuneration,

Service agreements and terms of appointment

The diractors have service contracts with the company.

Directors’ interests

The directors’ interests In the share capital of the company are set out In the Directors’ report.

Directors’ emoluments

Detalls of the remuneration packages are Included in note 7 — notes to the Consolidated Financial statements.

No penslon contributions were made by the company on behalf of its directors.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

For The Year Ended 31 October 2017 (Continued)

Approval by shareholders

At the next annual general meeting of the company @ resolution agproving this report is to be proposed as an
ordinary resolution.

This report was approved by the board on 23 February 2018.

—
T —
On Behaif of the Board

Andrew Monk - Commitiee Chalrman
23 February 2018
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For The Year Ended 31 October 2017

Policy

The policy of the board is to manage the affairs of the Company with reference to the UK Corporate Governance
Code, which is publicly available from the Financial Reporting Council.

Application of principles of good governance by the board of directors

The board currently comprises of four non-executive directors and one executive director (2016: four non-
executive directors).

David Lenigas was appointed chalrman on 5 September 2016.

The articles of assoclation require a third, but not greater than a third, of the directors to retire by rotation each
year.

There are regular board meetings each year and other meetings are held as reguired to direct the overall company
strategy and operations. Board meetings follow a formal agenda covering matters specifically reserved for decision
by the board. These cover key areas of the company's affairs Including overall strategy, acquisition policy, approval
of budgets, major capital expenditure and significant transactions and financing Issues.

The board has delegated certaln responsibilities, within defined terms of reference, to the audlt committee and
the remuneration committee as described below. The appointment of new directors Is made by the board as a
whole. During the year ended 31 October 2017, there were three formal board meetings, cne audit committee
meeting and one remuneration committee meeting. All meetings were fully attended.

The board undertakes a formal annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its committees and Individual
directors, through discussions and one-to-one reviews with the Chalrman and the Senior Independent Director.

Audit committee

The audit committee Is currently headed by David Lenigas, the Chalrman, and also comprises George Roach and
Robert Scott. The committee's terms of reference are In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code. The
committee reviews the company's financlal and accounting polices, Interim and final results and annual report
prior to their submission to the board, together with management reports on accounting matters and Intemnal
control and risk management systems. It reviews the auditors' management letter and considers any financial or
other matters ralsed by both the audtitors and employees.

The committee conslders the independence of the external auditors and ensures that, before any non-audit
services are provided by the external auditors, they will not impair the auditor's objectlvity and Independence.
During the year, non-audit services totalled £750 {2016 — £nil) and covered normal taxation and other related
compliance work, which did not impact on the auditors' objectivity or independence.

There is currently no Internal audit function within the Group. The directors conslder that this is appropriate of a
Group of this slze.

The committee has primary responsibllity for making recommendations to the board In respect of the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditors.

On Behalf of the Board
David Lenigas, Chairman
23 February 2018
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Anglo African Agriculture Plc

independent auditor’s report to the members of Anglo African Agriculture Plc
Opinion

We have audited the financizl statements of Anglo African Agriculture Plc (the ‘parent company’} and its subsidiaries
(the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 October 2017 which comprise the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, company statement of changes
in equity, consolidated statement of financial position, company statement of financial position, consolidated
statement of cash flows, company statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards.

In our opinion:

* the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s
affairs as at 31 October 2017 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

* the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union;

* the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS's as
adopted by the European Union; and

* the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard
as applied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

Woe draw attention to note 2 a. in the financial statements, which explains that the Group has incurred significant
operating losses and negative cash flows from operations. The Group forecasts include additional funding
requirements upon which the Group is dependent. The directors are satisfied that these funding requirements will
be met. Additionally, in the event that Dynamic Intertrade fails to meet its revenue predictions, the Group will need
to obtain additional debt or equity financing in order to fund its operations for at least the next twelve months. The
directors are satisfied that this can be achieved. These events or conditions, along with other matters as set out in
note 2 a. indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Anglo African Agriculture Plc (Continued)

Our audit approach
Overview
Key audit motters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment, were of most slgnificance in our audit of
the financlal statements of the cumrent perfod and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we Identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the
overall audit strategy, the afiocation of resources In the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whote, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. This Is not a complete list of all
risks identifled by our audit.

Possible impalrment of Goodwlll and the Long term investment
Recoverability of long term loans

Golng concern assumption

Accounting treatment of acquisition of assoclate

* ® & »

These are explained in more detail below
Materiality:
Group financial statements:

» £51,000 {31 October 2016: £42,000)

= Based on the average of the following:

a. 2% of Revenue
b. 2.5% of Gross Assets
¢ 10% of Net Profit

Company financial statements:
 £26,000 {31 October 2016: £20,000)
= Based on the average of the following:

d. 2.5% of Gross Assets
2. 10% of Net Profit

Audit scope

*  We conducted audits of the complete financlal Information of Anglo African Agriculture plc, Dynamic
intertrade Pty Limited, Dynamic¢ Intertrade Agri Pty Limited and APV Jolnt Venture.

* We performed specified procedures over certain account balances and transactlon classes at other Group
companies.

¢ Taken together, the Group companies over which we performed our audit procedures accounted for
100% of the absolute profit before tax {i.e. the sum of the numerical values without regard to whether
they were profits or losses for the relevant reporting units) and 100% of revenue.
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To the Members of Anglo African Agriculture Plc {Continued)

Key audit matters

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Possible impairment of goodwill and long term
investment

During the year the Group carried goodwill of
£226,644 (31 October 2016: £226,644) In relation to
the excess sum of consideration paid and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
Interest in the acquiree over the net of the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets
acqulred and the lisbilities assumed.

The directors have assessed whether the goodwill
shows any Indicatars of impalrment.

The adjusted company profit before tax, which is
considered by management to be a key metric and
Is discussed In their discussion of KPls, is directly
impacted by the amount of costs capitalised and the
amounts included In the recondllistion of the
adjusted income measures.

We focused on whether impairment was required
and if the unallocated goodwlll should be allocated
to an individual investment.

We considered whether the component of the
Group was still profit making and had an ability to
trade successfully Into the future.

We reviewed the component auditor’s working
papers and carried out additional testing on high risk
areas.

We tested management’s assumplion that no
Impairment existed by carrying out sensitivity
analysis through changing the assumptions used and
re- running the cash flow forecast.

We reviewed the latest management accounts to
gauge how trading was carrying on in the 2018
financial year.

The net assets of the main subsidiary exceeds that
of the investment camying value, supported by
robust performance with no going concern issues.

We found no materlal exceptions In our testing.

Recovarability of long tarm loans

The Company had fong term loans owed of
£802,789 at the year ended 31 October 2017. (31
October 2016; £637,798)

The Directors have confirmed the Ioans are all
treated as long term, with flexible repayment terms,
with Interest all rolled up and included in any
repayment due.

The Company had a long term loan to Dynamic
intertrade Limited of £415,000 (31 October 2016:
£415,000) at the year ended 31 October 2017,

The Company had an intercompany ioan to Dynamic
Intertrade Limited of £387,789 (31 October 2016:
£222,798) at the year ended 31 October 2017.

The analysis work undertaken by the directors
shows that the subsidlary Is expected to remain cash
generative and profitable based on thelr business.
We have understood and assessed the methodology
used by the directors In this analysls and determined
it to be reasonable.

We reviewed the component auditor's working
papers and carrled out additfonal testing on high risk
areas.

We tested management’s assumption that no
impalrment existed by carrying out sensitivity
analysis through changing the assumptions used and
re- running the cash flow forecast.

Golng concern assumption

The Group Is dependent upon lis ability to generate
sufficient cash flows to meet continued operational
costs and hence continue trading. Foreign exchange
risk continues to be a key risk in South Africa, which

Management’s golng concern forecasts include a
number of assumptions related to future cash flows
and assoclated risks. Our audit work has focused on
evaluating and challenging the reasonableness of
these assumptions and their impact on the forecast
period.
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can affect results annually.

The golng concern assumption Is dependent on
future growth of the current business along with
future acquisitions to grow the scale of the business
and future capital raises.

Specifically we obtained, challenged and assessed
managements going concemn forecast and
performed procedures Including:

#* Challenging management as to the
reasonableness of pricing assumptions
appiled based on benchmarking to market
data;

o Verifying the consistency of key inputs
relating to future costs and production to
other financlal and operational Information

obtained during the audit;
o Performing sensitivity analysis on
managements “base case”, Including

applying downside scenarlos such as lower
sales prices, reduced production and
restricted growth and considering the
mitigating actions  highlighted by
management In the event that they were
required.

Accounting treatment adopted on acquisition of
associate

The Company purchased a 46.81% equity interest In
Dynamic Intertrade Agri Pty Umited (“the
Associate”) in November 2016 for a share for share
consideration of £100,000 plus a deferred
consideration of £50,000 if certain performance
target were met.

The value of the associate at 31 October 2017 was
£90,046 {31 October 2016 : £nil)

The Investment Is treated under IAS 2B by
management as its deemed to meet the definition
of an associate as it has between 20% - 50% equity
holding and has an elected member to the board.

The Investment has been treated at cost minus the
percentage loss of net assets at year end.

We reviewed the final agreement and transaction
which took place, to unsure all elements of the
transaction were treated correctly.

We reviewed the associate’s financlal statements to
see if it met the additional requirements for the
additional consideration.

We reviewed the net assets of the Associate and
recalculated the net assets figure and multiplied It
by the percentage equity interest held.

Our application of materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with gualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures
and In evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financlal statements as a
whole.
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To the Members of Anglo African Agriculture Plc (Continued)

Based on our professional judgment, we determined materiallty for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements

Company financlal statements

Overall materiality

£51,000 (31 October 2016&:
£42,000).

£24000 (31 October 2016:
£20,000).

How we determined It

Based on the average of 10% of
profit before tax, 2.5% of gross
assets and 2% of Revenue.

Based on the average of 10% of
loss before tax and 2.5% of gross
assets.

Rationale for
benchmark applied

We believe that profit before tax
is a primary measure used by
shareholders in assessing the
performance of the Group whilst
gross asset values and revenue
are a representation of the size of
the Group: both are generally
accepted auditing benchmarks.

We belleve that profit before tax
is a primary measure used by
shareholders In assessing the
performance of the Company
whilst gross asset values are a
representation of the size of the
Company; both =are generally
accepted auditing benchmarks,

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a materlality that is less than our overall Group
materlality. The ranga of materfality allocated across components was between £10,000 and £35,000.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements Identifled during our audit
above £2,550 {Group audit) (31 October 2016: £1,800} and £1,300 (Company audit} (31 October 2016: £1,000) as
well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

An overview of the scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materlality and assessed the risks of material misstatement In the
financial statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgments, for example in
respect of significant accounting estimates that Involved making assumptions and considering future events that
are Inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits we also addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, Including evaluating whether there was evidence of blas by the directors that represented a risk of
materlal misstatement due to fraud.

How we taliored the audit scope

We tallored the scope of our audlt to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to glve an oplinlon on the
financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting
processes and controls, and the Industry in which they operate.

The Group financial statements are a consolidation of 4 reporting unlts, comprising the Group’s operating
businesses and holding companies.
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To the Members of Anglo African Agriculture Pic (Continued)

We performed audits of the complete financial information of Anglo African Agriculture plc, Dynamic Intertrade
Pty Limited, Dynamic Intertrade Agri Pty Limited and APV Joint Venture reporting units, which were individually
financlally significant and accounted for 100% of the Group’s revenue and 100% of the Group’s abseiute profit
hefare tax {i.e. the sum of the numerical values without regard to whether they were profits or losses for the
relevant reporting units). We alsc performed specified audit procedures over goodwill and other intangible assets,
as well as certzln account balances and transaction classes that we regarded as material to the Group at the 4
reporting units, one based In the United Kingdom and 3 more In South Africa.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other Information comprises the information Included
In the annual report, other than the financlal statements and our auditor's report thereon. Qur opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated In
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financlal statements, our responsibllity Is to read the other Information and, in
doing so, conslder whether the other information Is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtalned in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. (f we identify such material
inconsistencles or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there Is a material
misstatement In the financlal statements or a material misstatement of the other Information, If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken In the course of the audit:

» the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financlal year for which the
financial statements are prepared Is consistent with the financlal statements; and

* the strategic report and the directars’ report have been prepared In accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and parent company and its environment obtalned In
the course of the audit, we have not identified matertal misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’
report.

We have nothing to report In respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; er

= the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
or

¢ certaln disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= we have not recelved all the Information and explanations we require for our audit,
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To the Members of Anglo African Agriculture Plc (Continued)

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully In the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 30, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financlal statements and for being satisfled that they give a true and fair
view, and for such Internal control as the directors determine Is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and parent company’s
abllity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to golng concern and using the
golng concern basis of accounting unless the directors elther Intend to liquidate the group or the parent company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibiiities for the audit of the financiz! statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to [ssue an auditor’s report that Includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered materilal if, Individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
Influence the economic declsions of users taken on the basis of these financlal statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs {UK), we exercise professional judgment and malntain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, deslgn and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that Is
sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omisslons, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control,

¢ Obtaln an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinicn on the
effectiveness of the group’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the golng concern basls of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtalned, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the group’s or the parent company’s abllity to continue as a golng concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financlal statements or, Iif such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
oplnion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtalned up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the group or the parent company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, Including the
disclosures, and whether the financlal statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 3
manner that achieves falr presentation.
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To the Members of Anglo African Agriculture Plc (Continued)

*  Obtaln suffident appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the group to express an opinlon on the consolidated finandal statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit We remain solely
respensible for eur audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficlencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financdial statements of the current perlod and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters In our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, In extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated In our report because the adverse consequences of doing 5o would reasonably be expected to
outweligh the public Interest benefits of such communication.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinlons, has been prepared for and only for the parent company’s members as a body
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these oplinlons, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
is shown or into whose hands It may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent In writing.

Other matters which we are required to address

We were appointed as auditors by the Company at the Annual General Meeting on 24 April 2017. Our total
uninterrupted perlod of engagement s 4 years, covering the periods ending 31 March 2013 to 31 October 2017,

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent
company and we remain Independent of the group and the parent company in conducting our audit.

Our audit oTnion is consistent with the additional report to the audit committee.

g \G AN

Sanjay Parmar (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Jeffreys Henry LLP, Statutory Auditor
Finsgate

5-7 Cranwood Street

London EC1V SEE

23 February 2018
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 31 October 2017
Group Group Company Company
Year Ended YearEnded  Year Ended Year Ended
Notes 31 October 31 October 31 October 31 October
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ E
Turnover 2,126,797 1,605,219
Cost of Sales {1,609,050) {1,282,140)
Gross Profit 517,747 323,079
Other Income 5 673 2,767
Administrative expenses 8 {860,417} (665,218) {161,405} {103,7865)
Share of loss of assoclate 8 (9,954) (9,954)
impairment of loan to Joint
Venture & (73,566) : ) .
Admission expenses 8 {106,992} - (106,992)
Operating loss (532,509) (339,372] (278,351} {103,765)
Bank Interest Recelvable 4,109 - 4,109
Finance Costs 9 (17,748) (97,771)
Loss before taxation {550,257) {433,034) {278,351} {99,656}
Tax on loss on ordinary activities 10 - - -
Loss and total comprehensive
Income for the year (550,257) (433,034) (278,351) {99,656)
Baslc and dlluted loss per share 11 (0.28p) (0.38p}

Since there Is no other comprehensive loss, the loss for the year s the same as the total comprehensive loss for

the year attributable to the owners of the Group.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 31 October 2017
Group Group Group Group Group
Share Based
Share Share Retained
Capital Premium Payments Earnings Yotal Equity
Reserve
£ E £ £ £
Balance at 1 November 2015 94,896 1,107,373 11,586 (864,254) 349,601
Share Based Payments Reserve - (3,714) - (3,714)
Issue of Shares 85,896 464,104 - 550,000
Loss for the year - - - {433,034) {433,034)
Balance at 31 October 2016 180,792 1,571,477 7,872 (1,297,288) 462,853
Share Based Payments Reserve 8,573 8,573
Issue of Shares 26,192 194,058 - 220,250
Loss for the year - {550,257) (550,257}
Balance at 31 October 2017 206,985 1,765,535 16,445 {1,847,545) 141,419
Share capitai is the amount subscribed for shares at nominal value,
The share premium has arisen on the issue of shares at a premium to their nominal value,
Share-based payments reserve relate to the charge far share-based payments in accordance with IFRS 2.
Retained earnings represent the cumulative loss of the Group attributable to equity sharehoiders.
Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 31 October 2017
Company Company Company Company Company
Share Based
Share Capital Prse|::lr:m Payments I;:t::]:: ; 0‘:;;
Reserve
£ £ £ £ £
Balance at 1 November 2015 94,896 1,107,373 11,586 (509,756) 704,099
Share Based Payments Reserve - (3,714) * {3,714)
Issue of Shares 85,896 464,104 - 550,000
Loss for the year (99,656) {99,656)
Balance at 31 October 2016 180,792 1,571,477 7,872 (609,412) 1,150,729
Share Based Payments Reserve - 8,573 - 8,573
Issue of Shares 26,192 194,058 - - 220,250
Loss for the year - (278,351) {278,351}
Balance at 31 October 2017 206,984 1,765,535 16,445 (887,763) 1,101,201
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As at 31 October 2017
Group Group Company Company
Notes 31 October 31 October 31 October 31 Ociober
2017 2016 017 2016
£ £ £ £
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Investment in Subsidiaries 13 ; 297,915 297,915
Investment in Assoclate i3 90,046 90,046 -
Loan to Joint Venture 14 . 84,473
Long Term Intercompany Loans - 794,839 637,798
Property, Plant and Equlpment 15 121,322 159,585
Geodwill on Consolidation 16 226,644 226,644 -
438,012 470,712 1,182,800 935,713
Current assets
Inventories 17 203,782 166,393 .
Trade and Other Recelvables 18 380414 440,455 18470 8,134
Cash and Cash Equivalents 19 75952 268,720 43,299 240,337
660,148 875,638 61,765 248,471
Total Assets 2,522,250 LB5,U50 1,244,569 1,184,184
Eguity and Uinbiilties
Share Capltal 21 206,984 180,792 206,984 180,752
Share Premlum Account 21 1,765,535 1,571,477 1,765,535 1,571,477
Share-Based Payments Reserve 22 16445 7,872 16,445 7.872
Accumulated Deficit {1,847,545) {1,297,288) {887,763) {608,412)
Total Equity 141,419 40088 AL DL 2T, 1,150,729
Current Lisbilities
Trade and Other Payables 20 956,741 883,497 143,368 33,455
Total Liabilities 956,741 883,457 148,368 33455
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,098,150 1,946,350 1,244,568 1,184,184

The on pages 31 to 56 form part of these financial statements

App y the Board and authorised for issue on 23 Fabruary 2018,

David Lenigas, Chairman

Company Registration No. 07913053
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Group Group Company Company
YearEnded YearEnded YearEnded  Year Ended
Notes 31 October  310ctober 31October 31 October
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating loss {532,509) {339,372} (278,351} (99,656)
Add: Depreciation 15 52,400 45,116 ;
::::1: Foreign exchange movements on fixed 45 38,316 (28,545) .
“r:sfm":“"'e“t on share based payments 8573 (3,714) 8,573 (3,714)
Professional fees on raising 7,215 - 7,215
Share of loss of associate 13.1 9,954 9,954 -
Loss on disposal of jointly controlled entity 73,566
Changas [n working capital
{Increase) / decrease In Inventories (37,389) 165,113 : .
{Increase} / decrease in receivables 60,041 {217,378) (10,336} 101,638
Increase / (decrease) in payables 73,244 162,448 109,913 (23,872)
Interest received - 4,109 - .
Finance Costs {17,748) (97,771) -
Nat cash flow from operating activities (264,337)  (305994)  (153,032) (25,604)
invasting Activities
Acquisition of fixed assets 15 (30,629) {55,729) .
Disposal of fixed assets i5 - -
Increase / {decrease) in loans - jointly
controlled entitles {10,907) (1,894) (322,798)
Long term intercompany lean advanced . (157,041)
Sale of Investments 18,514 -
Nat cash flow from Investing activities {41,536) (39,109) (157,041) {322,798)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from Issue of shares 21 113,035 550,000 112,035 550,000
Net cash flow from financing activities 113,035 550,000 113,035 550,000
Net cash flow {192,838} 204,897 {197,038) 201,598
Opening Cash and cash equivalents 19 268,790 63,893 240,337 38,739
Closing Cash and cash equivalents 19 75,952 268,790 43,299 240,337

App
David Lenigas, Chairman
Company Registration No. 07913053

The % pages 31 to 56 form part of these financial statements

v the Board and authorised for issue on 23 February 2018.

Page | 30



Africgﬁl

1. General Information

Anglo African Agricufiure pic Is a company Incorporated In the Unlted Kingdom. Detalls of the registered office, the
officers and advisers to the Company are presented on the Directors and Advisers page at the beginning of this
report. The Company has a standard listing on the London Stock Exchange main market. The Information within
these finandial statements and accompanying notes have been prepared for yeur ended 31 October 2017 with
comparatives for year ended 31 October 2016.

2. Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financlal statements of Anglo African Agriculture pic have been prepared In accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Unlon {IFRS as adopted by the EU), IFRS
Interpretations Committee and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

The consolldated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise ks Judgement In the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consalidated financlal statements are disclosed In Note 3. The preparation of
financial statements In conformity with IFRS requires management to make Judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, llabilities, income and expenses.
Although these estimates are based on management's experience and knowledge of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlylng assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revislons to accounting estimates
are recognised In the year in which the estimates are revised If the revision affects only that year or in the year of
the revision and future year if the revision affects both current and future year.

a. Going Concern

These consolidated financial statements are prepared on the golng concern basls. The going concern basls assumes
that the Group will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to realise its assets and
discharge fts liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business. The Group has Incurred significant
operating losses and negetive cash flows from operatlons as the Group continued to expand its operations during
the year under review.

During the year, the Group raised £113,035 in net funding through share subscriptions to fund further Investment
in Dynamic Intertrade in order to improve production efficlencles and to fund working capltal.

Immediately subsequent to the year-end, the Group raised a further £150,000 through the further issue of shares.
There remains an active and very liquid market for the Group’s shares, The Group Is currently finalising a loan
agreement facility of R2 miilion.

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for the period ended 31 October 2018, taking Into account
forecast operating cash flows and capltal expenditure requirements for Dynamic Intertrade, available working
capital and forecast expenditure for the rest of the Group Including overheads and other costs. The forecasts
include additional funding requirements which the directors believe will be met.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

In the event that Dynamic Intertrade faiis tc meet revenue predictions and any other relevant risk factors arise, the
Group will need to obtain additional debt finance or equity to fund its operations for the perlod to 31 October
2018. The cash flow forecast is dependent on production targets being met at Dynamic Intertrade, maintalning the
invoice financing arrangements, generating future sales and the selling prices remaining stable during the period to
31 October 2018.

After careful consideration of the matters set out above, the Directors are of the opinion that the Group will be
able to undertake its planned activities for the period to 31 October 2018 from production and from additional
fund ralsing and have prepared the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis. Nevertheless
due to the uncertainties inherent in meeting ts revenue predictions and obtalning additional fund raising there
can be no certainty In these respects. The financlal statements do not include any adjustments that would resuit if

the Group was unable to continue as a going concern.

New and Amended Standards Adopted by the Company
There are no IFRS and IFRIC Interpretations that are effective for the first time for the financlal year beginning on
or after 1 November 2017 that would be expected to have a materlal impact on the Group.

Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Standards which Are Not Yet Effective
The following new standards, amendments to standards and Interpretations have been issued, but are not

effective for the financial year beginning 1 November 2017 and have not been early adopted:

measurement, pluentslinnandcbdnsumuf
insurance contracts Issued

Referonce Title Summary Application dats of
standard {(Periods
commencing on or
after)

Amendments to First-fime adoption of Amendments resulting from Annuel Improvements 1 November 2018

IFRS 1 International Financlal 20142016 Cycle (removing short-term exempilons)

Reporis Standards

Amendments to Share-based payments Amendments to clarffy the classification and 1 November 2018

IFR8 2 measurement of share based payment transactions

Amendment to Insurance Contracts Amendments regarding the intaraction of [FRS 4 and 1 November 2018

IFRS 4 IFRS 8

IFRS 9 Financlal Instruments on the classification and messurement 1 November 2018

of financial asseis and labilities and includes an
aexpeciad credit losses model which replaces the
current loss Impalrment model. Also kicludes the
hedging amendment that was Issued in 2013

Amendments to Disclosure of interests in Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 1 November 2017

IFRS 12 other aentities 2014-2016 (Clarifying Scape)

IFRS 16 Revenue from contracts Spacifiss how and when fo recognize revenue from 1 November 2018

with customers confracts as well as requiring mare information and
relevant disclosunss.
IFRS 16 Loasas Original lssue 1 November 2019
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts Establishes principles for tha recognition, 1 November 2021

Page | 32



lo

agriculture Aic
mgmdmmh to Statement of CashFlows  Amendments as a result of the disclosura initiative 1 November 2017
7

Amendments to Income Texes Amendments regarding the recognition of deferred tax 1 Novemnber 2017
IAS 12 asgets for unreleased losses
Amendments fo Investments in Assoclates  Amendments resuliing from Annual improvements 1 November 2018
IAS 28 and Joint Ventures 2014-2016 cycle (Clarifying certain falr value

measurements
Amendments to Financial Instruments: Amendments to permit entity to elect to confinue to 1 November 2018
1AS 39 Recognition and apply the hedge accounting requirements in LAS 38 for

measurement a falr value hedge of the Interest rate exposure of a

portion of a portfolio of financial assete or finandlal

Fablities when IFRS & Is applied and to extend the fair

value option to certaln contracts that mest the ‘own

use' scope exceplion
Amendments to Investment Property Amendments to clarify transfers or property to or from 1 November 2018
IAS 40 Investment property
Amendments 1o Forelgn Currency Amendments to clarify the accounting for transactions 1 November 2018
IFRIC 22 tranaactions and advance  that include the receipt or payment of advance

consideration conekieration In e foreign cumency.

Amendments to Uncertainty over income Addresses how to refiect uncertainty in accaunting for 1 November 2018
IFRIC 23 tax freatments income taxes.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards and the Interpretations in future perlods will have no
material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

b. Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financlal statements of the Company and entlties controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31st October each year. Control Is achleved where the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating policles of an investee entity so as to obtaln benefits from its
activitles.

The results of subsidlaries acquired or disposed of during the year are inciuded in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive Income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financlal statements of subsldiaries to bring their
accounting policies Into line with those used by other members of the Group. All intra-group transactlons,
balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Changes In the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's Interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes In thelr relative interests in the subsidiarles.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal Is calculated as the difference between
{i} the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration recelved and the fair value of any retained Interest and (If})
the previous carrying amount of the assets {Including goodwill), and llabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or falr values and
the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised In other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated In equity are
accounted for as Iif the Company had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings}. The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is {ost Is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” or, when applicable, the cost on initlal recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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Business Combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which s calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferved by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:

» Deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabllities or assets related to employee benefit arangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with 1AS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o Liabilitles or equity instruments related to share-based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an actjuiree’s share-based payment transactions with share-based payment transactions
of the Group are measured In accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o Assets {or disposal groups] that are classified as held for sale In accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured (n accordance with that standard.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
Interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity Interest In the acquiree (if any)
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the llabilities assumed. If, after
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabllities assumed
exceeds

the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any}, the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargaln purchase gain.

Joint Ventures and Assodates

A Joint venture Is a contractual agreement under which two or more parties conduct an economic activity and
unanimous approval Is required for the financial and operating policies. Assotiates are all entities over which the
Group has significant Influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Joint ventures and assoclates are accounted for using the equity method, which Involves
recognition in the consolidated income statement of AAA’s share of the net result of the joint ventures and
assoclates for the year. Accounting policies of joint ventures and assoclates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. AAA’s Interest in a joint venture or associate is carried
In the statement of financlal position at Its share in the net assets of the Joint venture or assoclate together with
goodwill paid on acquisition, less any impairment loss. When the share in the losses exceeds the carrying amount
of an equity-accounted company (including any other receivables forming part of the net Investment In the
company), the carrying amount is written down to nfl and recognition of further losses Is discontinued, unless we
have incurred legal or constructive obligations relating to the company In question.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

¢. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost Includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included In the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when It Is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured rellably. All other repzirs and malntenance are charged to
profit or loss during the financial year in which they are incurred. Depreclation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-ine method to write off their cost over their estimated useful lives at the following
annual rates:

Leasehold improvements 33.3%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 17%
Plant and machinery 20%
Computer equipment 33.3%

Useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted If appropriate, at the end of each reporting year.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arlse from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss in the year In which the asset Is
derecognised,

d. Investments in Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidlaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment.
e. Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost Is determined using specific identification
and in the case of work In progress and finished goods, comprises the cost of purchase, cost of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the Inventorles to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and applicable
selling expenses,

When the Inventories are sold, the catrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense In the year in
which the related revenue Is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventaries are recognised as an expense In the year in which the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as an expense in the year in which the
reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

f. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there Is an indication that an asset may be Impalred. If any
such indication exists, or when an annual impalrment assessment for an asset is required, the Group makes an
estimate of the asset’s recoverabla amount. An asset’s recoverable amount Is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value In use and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash Inflows that are largely dependent on those from other assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset Is considered
impaired and Is written down to Its recoverable amount. In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows
expected to be generated by the asset are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions
can be Identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroberated by valuation
multiples or other avallable fair value Indicators.

Impalrment losses are recognised [n profit or loss in those expense categorles consistent with the function of the
impaired asset, except for assets that are previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other
comprehensive Income. In this case, the impairment Is also recognised in other comprehensive Income up to the
amount of any previous revaluation,

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there Is any indication that previously recognised
Impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such Indication exists, the Group estimates the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount.

A previcusly recognised Impalrment loss Is reversed only if there has been a change In the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of an asset since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that Is the case,
the carrying amount of the asset is Increased to Its recoverable amount. This Increase cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreclation, had no Impalrment loss been recognised
previously. Such reversal Is recognised In the profit and loss unless the asset Is measured at revalued amount, in
which case the reversal Is treated as a revaluation Increase.

g- Financial Instruments

Flnanclal assets and financial llabllities are recognised on the statement of financlal position when &n entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Instruments. Financla! assets and financial ifabliities are
initially measured at falr value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or Issue of
financlal assets and financial Babllitles {other than financlal assets and financial llabliitles at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financlal assets or financial liabliities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financlal assets or
financial llabHities at falr value through profit or loss are recognised Immediately In the Income statement.

i.  Financial Assets
The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets are set out below.

Management determine the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose for
which the financlal assets were acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluate this designation at every
reporting date.
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All financlal assets are recognised on 2 trade date when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of an Instrument. When financlal assets are recognised Initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs, except for those finance assets classified as at fair value throeugh profit or loss
{*FVTPL"}, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financlal assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at FVTPL, ‘held-to-maturity’
investments, “available for sale’ (AFS} financial assets and loans and recelvables, The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and Is determined at the time of recognition.

Derecognition of financlal assets occurs when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess whether there Is objective evidence of impairment.
If any such evidence exists, impairment loss Is determined and recognised based on the classification of the
financlal asset.

Loans and recelvables (including trade recelvables, prepayments, deposits and other recelvables, cash and bank
balances} are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted on an active
market.

At each reporting date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and recelvables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective Interest method, less any Identified impairment losses. An Impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income when there is objective evidence that the asset Is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective Interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed In subsequent periods when an
Increase In the asset’s recoverable amount ¢an be related objectively to an event occurring after the impalrment
was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment [s
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

H. Financlal Liabtliies and Equity

Financlal liabilities and equity are recognised on the Group's statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to a contractual provision of an instrument. Financial llabliitles and equity instruments issued by
the Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial llabllity and an equity Instrument.

An equity Instrument Is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments Issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds recelved, net of
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilltles include amounts due to a director, trade payables and accrued liabllities. These
financla! llabllitles are classified as FVTPL are stated at fair value with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement recognised In profit or loss. Other financial liabilities, Including borrowings are inltially measured at
fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
Interest rate method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yleld basis.

The effective Interest method is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial llability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on Initial recognition.
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Financial liabllitles are de-recognized when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the canrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration palid is recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income.

When an existing financial llabllity Is repiaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing llabllity are substantlally modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original llability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income.

ll. Trade and Other Recelvables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest methed, less provision for impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts, except where
the recelvables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be material. In such cases, the recelvables are stated at cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts.

iv. Trade and Other Payables

Liabilitles for trade and other payables which are recognised initally at their falr value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting would not be material, In
which case they are stated at cost.

v. FalrValues

The carrylng amounts of the financlal assets and liabilities such as cash and cash equivalents, receivables and
payables of the Group at the balance sheet date approximated thelr fair values, due to the relatively short term
nature of these financlal Instruments.

h. Borrowings

Borrowings are presented as current liabilities uniess the Greup has an unconditional right to defer settlement for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date, In which case they are presented as non-current llabilitles.

Borrowings are Initially recorded at fair value, net of transaction costs and subsequently carrled for at amortised
costs using the effective Interest method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value Is recognised In profit or loss over the year of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Borrowings which are due to be settled within twelve months after the balance sheet date are included in
current borrowings [n the balance sheet even though the original term was for a period longer than twelve months
and an agreement to reflnance, or to reschedule payments, on a long-term basls is completed after the balance
sheet date and bafore the financial statements are authorised for Issue.

i. Revenue Recognition

Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration recelved or recelvable and represents amounts
receivable for the sales of goods and the use by others of the Group’s assets yielding interest, net of rebates and
discounts,

Revenue on sales of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
colncides with the time when the goods are delivered to customers and titie has been passed.

Interest Income from a financlal asset, Is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated futurs cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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J. Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists of all costs of purchase and other directly incurred costs.

Cost of purchase comprises the purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable by the Group from the taxing authorities), if any, and transport, handling and other costs directly
atiributable to the acquisition of goods. Trade discounts, rebates and other simllar items are deducted In
determining the costs of purchase. Cost of conversion primarily consists of hiring charges of subcontractors
incurred during the course of conversion.

k. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are expensed In the year in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs In connection with the borrowing of funds.

l. Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tex currently payable Is based on taxabie profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the statement of comprehensive Income because It excludes ltems of Income and expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and It further excludes tems that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax Is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting year.

Deferred tax Is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financlal statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabillties are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that It Is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and llabllities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from goodwill
or from the Initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabllities in a transaction
that affects nelther the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax llabllitles are recognised for taxable temporary differences assoclated with Investments in
subsidiarles, except where the Group Is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and It is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences assoclated with such Investments are only recognised to the extent that It Is
probable that there will be sufficlent taxable profits against which to utllise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse In the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the each reporting year and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabllities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year In which the
Kability (s settled or the asset reallsed. The measurement of deferred tax assets and labilitles reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting year, to
recover or settle the carrylng amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Current or deferred tax for the year is recognised In profit or loss, except when 1t relates to items that are
recognised In other comprehensive income or directly In equity, in which case the current and deferred tax s also
recognhised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initlal accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accourting for the
business combination.

m. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible Into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition, Bank overdrafts that are repayzble on demand and form an Integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

n. Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a resuft of a past event, and It Is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the statement of financial position date, and are discounted to
present value where the effect is material. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement s
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision Is recognised even If the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one ltem included In the same class of abligations may be small.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value at the
reporting date of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The Increase In the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time Is included in finance costs in the statement of
comprehensive Income.

Contingent llabilities are not recognised In the financlal statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits Is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised In the financial
statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

o. Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares are deducted against share capital.

p. Foreign Currencies

In preparing the financlal statements of each Individual group entity, transactions In currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (forelgn currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency {i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting year, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevalling on the date when the falr value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured In terms of historical costs In a forelgn currency are not
retransiated.

Page |40



Africafl

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on transfation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss In the year In which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary Items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the year except for differences arising on the
retransiation of non-monetary items In respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive Income, In which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive Income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, assets and llabilities of the Group’s forelgn
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (l.e. South African Rand) at the rate of
exchange prevalling at the end of the reporting year, and thelr income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that year, In which case, the
exchange rates prevalling at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
In ather comprehensive income and accumulated In equity.

The principal exchange rates during the year are set out in the table below:

Rate compared to £ Year End Rate 2017 Year End Rate 2016
South African Rand 18.75 16,58
US Dollar 1.32 1.23

q. Finance Leases

Assets held under finance leases are Inltially recognised as assets of the Group at thelr fair value at the inception of
the lease or, If lower, at the present value of the minimum [ease payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessar Is included in the statement of financlal pesition as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are treated as
a reduction of the lease obligation on the remalning balance of the liability.

Finance expenses are recoghised Immediately In profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, In which case they are capitalised. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses In the years in which they
are Incurred.

r. Operating Leases

Whire the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payment made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss over the accounting years covered by the lease term except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease Incentives recelved are
recognised In profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss In the accounting years in which they are incurred.

s. Employee Benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, pald annual leave and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are accrued In the
year in which employees of the Group render the assoclated services. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at thelr present values.

t. Segmental Reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chlef
operating decislon maker. The chief operating decislon-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive Directors who make
strategic decislons.
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3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described above, management Is required to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readlly apparent from
other sources. The estimates and assumptions that had a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets and Habllities are discussed below.

a. Inventory Valuation

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market conditions and the historical experience of selling products of a
similar nature. It could change significantly as a resuit of competitors’ actlons in response to severe industry cycles.
The Group reviews its inventories in order to ldentlfy slow-moving merchandlse and uses markdowns to clear
merchandise. Inventory value Is reduced when the declision to markdown below cost is made.

b. Impairment of Recelvables

The Group’s management reviews recelvables on a regular basis to determine if any provision for impairment 1Is
necessary, The policy for the impairment of recelvables of the Group Is based on, where appropriate, the
evaluation of collectabllity and ageing analysis of the recelvables and on management’s Judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement Is required In assessing the ultimate realisation of these outstanding amounts, Including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor. if the financial conditions of debtors of the
Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impalrment of thelr ability to make payments, provision for impairment
may be required.

¢. Income Taxes

The Group Is subject to Income taxes in South Africa and the UK. Significant judgement is required In determining
the pravision for Income taxes and the timing of payment of the related tax. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination Is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabllitles for anticipated tax based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters Is different from the amounts that were Inltially recorded, such differences
will Impact the Income tax provision in the year In which such determination is made.

d. Share Based Payments

The fair value of share-based payments recognised In the income statement is measured by use of the Black
Scholes model, which takes into account conditions attached to the vesting and exercise of the equity Instruments.
The expected life used In the model Is adfusted; based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferabllity, exercise restrictlons and behavioural considerations. The share price volatility percentage factor
used in the calculation is based on management’s best estimate of future share price behaviour based on past
experience, future expectations and benchmarked against peer companles In the industry.
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e. Depreciation and Amortisation

The Group depreclates property, plant and equipment and amortises the leasehold land and land use rights on a
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives reflect the Directors’ estimate of
the years that the Group Intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the Group’s property, plant

and equipment.

4. Segmental Reporting

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has one class of business, being the trading of agrlcultural materiats, The
Group’s primary reporting format Is determined by the geographical segment according to the location of Kts
establishments. There Is currently only one geographic reporting segment, which is South Africa. All revenues and

costs are derived from the single segment.

5. Other Income

2017 2016
£ £
Other incotne 673 2,767

Other Income reprasents the bad debts recovered and sundry income.

6. Personnel Expenses and Staff Numbers (Including Directors)

Number Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
The average number of employees In the year were:
Diractors 5 a 5 a4
Management 3 3
Accounts and Administration 2 1 -
Sales 2 2 - -
Manufacturing/Warehouse 16 15
Total 25 a4
£ £ £ £
The aggregate payroll costs for these persons were: 383,121 255,873 55,656 18,954
Average ratio of executive pay verse average
employee pay 0.78 0.74
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7. Directors’ Remuneration

Salaries and Fees Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
David Lenigas 12,000 1,000 12,000 1,000
George Roach 12,000 6,000 12,000 6,000
Robert Scott 12,000 1,000 12,000 1,000
Andrew Monk * 13,656 6,828 13,656 6,828
Matt Bonner 6,000 - 6,000
Nell Herbert 4,166 4,166
Cralg Anthony Forbes 16,357
55,656 35,351 55,656 18,994
* Included in Andrew Monks remuneration Is £ 1,656 for National Insurance
8. Expenses - Analysis by Nature
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services: Parent 10,500 6,000 10,500 6,000
Auditors’ remuneration for other services: Parent 750 750 -
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services: Subsldiary 4,331 2,865 -
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 52,400 49,116 -
(Galn) / loss on exchange (13,779) 7,657
Personnel expenses (Note 6) 383,121 255,873 55,656 18,994
Other administrative expenses 423,094 343,707 94,498 78,801
Sub-total 860,417 665,218 161,405 103,795
Impairment of loan to Joint Venture 73,566 -
Admission expenses 106,992 106,992
Loss from Associated entity 9,954 9,954
Total administrative expenses 1050929 665,218 278,351 103,765
9. Finance Costs
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Interest 17,748 97,771 -
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Finance costs represent interest and charges in respect of the discounting of invoices.

10. Taxation

The charge for the year can be reconclled to the profit before taxation per the consclidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £

Tax Charge
Factors affecting the tax charge:
Loss on ordinary activitles before taxation ({550,257) {433,034) (278,351) (99,656)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation {108,676) {86,609) (54,974) {19,931)
multiplied by standard rate of UK corporation tax
of 19.75% {2016: 20%)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax 1,522 2,000 1,522 2,000
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses 107,154 84,609 53,452 17,931

Difference = Actual and Parent tax rate . a -
Tax Charge - : -

The Company has excess management expenses of £187,346 (2016 - £184,548) available for carty forward against
future trading profits. The deferred tax asset in these tax losses at 19.75% of £37,001 (2016 - £36,910) has not
been recognised due to the uncertainty of recovery.

11.Loss Per Share

Loss per share data is based on the Group result for the year and the welghted average number of shares in issue.
Basic loss per share Is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to equity shareholders by the welghted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year:

Group
2017 2016
£ £
Loss after tax (550,257 {433,024)
Welghted average. number of ordinary shares In Issue 194,791,752 114,461,821
Basic and diluted loss per share {pance) ﬁ:ﬂ(;rlmﬁl (0_33;)

Baslc and diluted earnings per share are the same, since where z loss is Incurred the effect of outstanding share
options and warrants is considered anti-dilutive and Is Ignored for the purpose of the loss per share calculation. As
at 31 October 2017 there were 2,761,330 {31 October 2016 - 12,638,660} outstanding share warrants and
20,956,184 (2016 — 17,356,184} outstanding options, both are potentially dilutive.
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12, Dividends
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Dividends Paid -
13. Investments
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Investrnent In Subsidiary - - 297,915 297,915
Investment [n Assoclate 90,046 - 90,046 -
13.1. Investment in Associate
Group Group Company Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Investment in Dynamic Intertrade Agrl (Pty) Ltd 100,000 - 100,000 -
Share of loss of Associate (9,954) - (9,954)
Carrying value 90,046 - 90,046
As at 31 October 2017, the Company directly and indirectly held the following subsidiary and associste:
Name of company Principal activitles Country of Proportion (%} of Proportion (%) of
incorporation and place equity Interest equity Interest
of business 2017 2016
Dynamic Intertrade Trading In Agricultural South Africa 100% 100%
(Pty) Limited Products
Pynamic Intertrade Agrl | Agricultural commedity South Africa 46.8% -
{Pty) Limited trading and distribution

On 3 November 2016 the group acquired 46.8% in Dynamic Intertrade Agri {Pty) Ltd (“DIA”}, which investment has
been equity accounted since acquisition.
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Summarised financial information of the associate company

2017 2016
Non-current assets 5,793
Current assets 134,466
Cash and cash equivalents 1,819
Total assets 144,094
Non-current liabllities 48,137 -
Current llabllitles 62,909
Total Liabllities
Turnowver 1,226,678 -
Loss before taxation (28,470) -
Total comprehensive Income (28,470) -
Depreciation 2,482
Interest Income 267 -
Interest Expensed . -
Income tax expense -
14. Loan to Joint Venture
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Loan to loint Venture - 84,473

On 22 November 2016 the Group agreed to sell its 49.9% interest In Africa Projects and Ventures, a joint venture
with Lamberti based in South Africa.

In the prior year the loan represented an nterest free long term loan made to Africa Projects and Ventures. During
the year under review this lcan was Impaired In full and a charge of £73,566 {2016: £ nil) was taken to Income and
expense,

On 31 October 2017 the company’s wholly owned subsidiary Dynamic Intertrade {Pty) Limited (*Dynamic")
entered Into the Sale and Purchase Agreement In terms of which Dynamic will sell the 49.9% of the allotted and
Issued share caplital of APV African Projects and Ventures (Pty} Limited to Misty Rose Properties 11 CC, a company
owned by Mr G Roach for the total sum of 2AR1.00.
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Group Leasehold Furniture and Plant and Total
Property foctures machinery

£ £ £ £
Cost
At 01 November 2016 25,007 4,505 436,445 465,961
Addltlons 2,918 733 26,978 30,629
Disposals (4,650) (4,650}
Exchange differences (2,959) (640) {56,335) (59,934)
As at 31 October 2017 20,316 4,598 407,092 432,006
Depreciation o
At 01 November 2016 11,332 2,552 292,482 306,366
Charge for the year 7,574 485 44,341 52,400
Released on disposal (4,635} (4,635)
Exchange differences (2,320) {392) {40,735) (43,447)
As at 31 October 2017 1951 2645 295088 310,684
Net Baok Value
As at 31 October 2017 8,365 1,953 111,004 121,322
At 01 November 2016 13,675 1,953 143,967 159,595

The holding company held no tangible fixed assets at 31 October 2017 and 2016.

16. Goodwili

Goodwill has been calculated as £226,644 (2016: £226,644) and is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration pald and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the Identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

Goodwill has been tested for impairment as at the balance sheet date. The recoverable amount of goodwill at 31
October 2016 and 2017 was assessed on the basls of value in use. As this exceeded the carrying values no
impalrment loss was recognised. The key assumptions In the calculation to assess value in use are future revenues

and the abllity to generate future cash flows.

The most recent financial results and forecasts for the next year were used, followed by an extrapolation of future
cash flows using a price eamnings ratlo. The projected results were discounted at a rate which Is a prudent
evaluation of the pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks

specific to the cash-generating unit.

The key assumptions used in the value In use calculations in 2016 and 2017 were as follows:

- A discount rate of 10%

- Sales growth of 18%

= Weighting of probabilities assigned to potential earnings.
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The Directors belleve the significance of the earning potential identified mean that the goodwill does not require

impalrment at this early stage.
17.Inventories
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Raw materlals 115,114 152,976
Work-in-progress 14,497 4,344
Finished goods 74,171 9,073
203,782 166,393 .
18. Trade and other receivables
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Trade Receivables 344,389 432,321
Other Recelvables 36,025 8,134 18,470 8,134
380,414 440,455 18,470 8,134

Group Trade recelvables represent amounts recelvable on the sale of agricultural products and are Included after

provisions for doubtful debts,

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade receivables and other receivables approximates their fair

19, Cash and Cash Equivalents

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Cash on hand 75,952 268,790 43,299 240,337
20.Trade and Other Payables
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Trade payables 859,717 842,782 143,368 33,458
Other payables 46,477 14,554 -
Related party payables 50,547 26,161
956,741 883,497 143,368 33,455
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Trade payables represent amounts tue for the purchase of agriculture materials and administrative expenses. The
Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to thelr fair value.

Included In other payables are the following related party financlal liablilties:

G Roach 23,131 26,161
M Eonner 27,416 -
Terms:

G Roach: The loan bears interest at the South African prime overdraft rate, The interest will be calculated and pald
when the loan is repald. The [oan Is repayable as decided upon from time to time.

M Bonner: The loan bears interest at the South African prime overdrait rate. The interest Is calculated and pald
quarterly, The loan is repayable as declded upon fromn time to time.

21. Share Capital and Share Premium

Allotted, called up and fully paid share capital and Number Nominal Share Total
share premium Value Premium

£ £ £
Balance at 1 November 2015 94,896,125 94,896 1,107,373 1,202,269
Issued during the year 85,895,321 85,896 464,104 550,000
Balance at 31 October 2016 180,791,446 180,792 1,571,477 1,752,269
lssued during the year 26,192,308 26,152 194,058 220,250
Balance at 31 October 2017 206,983,754 206,984 1,765,535 1,972,519

Share capital is the amount subscribed for shares at nominal value.
Retalned losses represent the cumulative loss of the Group attributable to equity shareholders.
Share-based payments reserve relate to the charge for share-based payments in accordance with IFRS 2,

During the year the company placed these shares and as the number of placing shares comprised more than 10%
of the companies Issued share capital, and although the placing shares has been aliotted, admission of the placing
shares required publicatlon of a Prospectus within a tweive month period. On 22 March 2017, the company
announced that the Prospectus had been approved by the UK Listing Authority. The April 2016, September 2016
and March 2017 shares were admitted to the Standard Listing segment of the Official List of the UK Listing
Authority and to trading on the London Stock Exchange Main Market. In total these shares amounted to
93,587,829 Ordinary Shares.

22, Share Based Payments Reserve

The Company has a share-ownership compensation scheme for senior executives of the Company whereby senior
executives may be granted options to purchase Ordinary Shares in the Company.
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Warrants

There are 2,761,330 warrants to subscribe for ordinary shares at 31 October 2017 (31 October 2016: 12,638,660).
Of these:-
» 2,761,330 warrants are exercisable at a price of 1.5p and were issued as consideration to the Joint financial
advisers of the Company, Zeus Capltal Limited and VSA Capital Limited.
® In the prior year 9,877,330 warrants were exercisable at a price of 2.75p, all of which expired during the
current year.

Options

At 1 November 2016 there were 17,356,184 share options issued to the directors and a senjor manager of the
Company. During the year a further 3,600,000 share options were granted to a Director (2016: 11,839,046).

The movement on the share based payment charge for the year was £8,572 {2016 - £-3,714) In respect of the
Issued options. The details of warrants and options are as follows:

Date of At 01 November Granted/ Forfelts At31 Exercise Exercise/Vesting Date
2016 Exercised/ October

Grant Vested 2017 Price From To

Warrants

06/09/2012 2,761,330 - - 2,761,330 1p 06/05/2012 ©5/09/2022

11/08/2014 9,877,330 - 9,877,330 2.75p 11/0B/2014 31/01/2017

Onilens

06/09/2012 17,356,184 3,600,000 - 20,956,184 ip 13/08/2014 05/09/2022

129,994,844 3,600,000 9,877,330 23,717,514

The remuneration committee’s aim Is to remunerate executive directors competitively and to reward
performance. The remuneration committee determines the company's policy for the remuneration of executive
directors, having regard to the UK Corporate Governance Code and its provisions on directors’ remuneration.

The number of warrants and options outstanding to the Directors that served in the year, as at 31 October 2017
were as follows:

2017 2017 2016 2016

Director Warrants Options Warrants Optlons
Andrew Monk - 3,839,046 - 3,839,046
George Roach 3,839,046 - 3,839,046
Robert Scott 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Matthew Bonner 3,600,000

Sub-total 12,278,092 12,517,138
Nell Herbert * 3,839,046 6,000,000 3,839,046
Total - 16,117,138 6,000,000 15,090.784

* Netl Herbert resigned as a Director on 5 September 2016 and his warrant options expired on 31 January 2017.
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The estimated fair value of the options in issue was calculated by applying the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The assumptions usad in the calculation were as follows:

Share price at date of grant £0.001- £0.225 / £0.025
Exercise price £0.0055
Expected volatility 30%
Expected dividend 0%
Contractual life 5 years
Risk free rate 1,25%
Estimated fair value of each option £0.0045

The share options outstanding at the year-end had a welghted average remaining contractual life of 4.5 years
{2016: 6 years),

23. Operating lease
Operating lease charges Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Premises 94.001 71,605
Equipment 5,019 3,977
95,020 75,582
Minimum [ease payments Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Not later than one year 105,132 75,582 -
Between one year and five years 196,635 301,767 -
Later than five years - -
301,767 377,349 -

24. Financial instruments

The Group uses financlal Instruments comprising cash, trade and other recelvables and trade and other payables.
Cash balances are held in Sterling, US Dollars and South African Rand.

The Group has a policy of not hedging and therafore takes market rates In respect of foreign axchange risk.
However, rates are monitored closely by management,
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Financlal assets and liabilities
Cash and Financial llabilitles
receivables at amortised cost Total
2017 £ £ £
Trade and other receivables 344,389 344,389
Other receivables 36,025 - 36,025
Cash and cash equivalents 75,952 75,952
456,366 456,366
Trade payables - 859,718 859,718
Other payables 46,477 46,477
Related party payables . 50,547 50,547
- 956,742 956,742
Cash and Financial liabllities
recelvables at amortised cost Total
2016 £ £ £
Trade and other receivables 432,321 432,321
Other receivables 8,134 8134
Cash and cash equlivalents 268,790 268,790
709,245 709,245
Trade payables 842,782 842,782
Other payables 34,554 34,554
Related party payables ‘ 26,161 26,161
883,497 883,497

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value
The fair value of cash and receivables and liabllities approximates the carrying values disclosed in the financial
statements.

Capital management
The Group manages its capital resources to ensure that entities In the Group will be able to continue as a golng
concern, while maximising shareholder return.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to sharehoiders, comprising issued share capital
and reserves. The avallability of new capital will depend on many factors including a positive operating
environment, positive stock market conditions, the Group’s track record, and the experience of management.
There are no externally Imposed capital requirements. The Directors are confident that adequate cash resources
exist or will be made avallable to finance operations but controls over expenditure are carefully managed.

Foreign currency risk
The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in forelgn currencies. Hence, exposures to exchange rate
fiuctuations arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary llabilitles at
the reporting date are as follows:
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Liabliitles Assets
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
United States doflar (USDS) - - 177 177
South African Rand (ZAR) 813,376 823,880 598,379 627,168
813,376 823,880 598,556 627,345
Cash and cash equivalents
Liabllitles Assets
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Sterling - 43,122 240,337
United States dollar (USDS) 177 .
South African Rand {ZAR) . 32,653 28,453
- 75,952 268,790

The presentation currency of the Group is UK Pounds sterling.

The Group Is exposed primarily to movements in Sterling and Sauth African Rand, the former currency in which the
Group receives most of its funding, against other currencies in which the Group incurs llabllities and expenditure.

Sensitivity analysis

Financial Instruments affected by foreign currency risk include cash and cash equivalents, trade other recsivables
and trade and other payables. The following analysis, required by IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, is
Intended to [llustrate the sensitivity of the Group’s financial Instruments {at year end) to changes in market
varlables, being exchange rates.

The following assumptions were made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

¢  Allincome statement sensitivities also Impact equity
e Translation of foreign subsidiaries and operations into the Group's presentation currency have been
excluded from this sensitivity as they have no monetary effect on the results

income Statement / Equity
2017 2016
£ £

Exchange rates:

+10% US$ Sterling (GBP) 18 17
-10% USS$ Sterling (GBP) {18) (17)
+10% South African Rand (ZAR) Sterling (GBP) 3,265 2,845
-10% South African Rand (ZAR} Sterling (GBP) {3,265) (2,845

The above sensltivitles are calculated with reference to a single moment in time and will change due to a number
of factors including:

¢  Fluctuating other receivable and trade payable balances

+  Fluctuating cash balances
= Changes In currency mix
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Credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Group to a significant concentration of tredit risk consist
primarily of trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Group limits its exposure to credit loss from
trade reccivables by reviewing credit expasures to all customers and discounting of trade recelvables. The Group
limits fts exposure to credit loss by placing its cash with major financlal institutions. As at 31 October 2017, the
Group held £75,952 In cash and cash equivalents (2016: £268,790).

Liquidity risk
All of the Group’s financlal liabilities are classified as current. The Group intends to settle these liabllities from
revenue generated from sales production and working caphtal,

Market risk

The group's investments In an assoclate company comprise a non-controlling shareholding In an unlisted company.
The shares are not readily tradable and any monetisation of the shares is dependent on finding a willing buyer.

25. Related Party Transactions

Director’s fees

The previous Chalrman, Andrew Monk, Is a director of VSA Capital Limited and that company provided services
amounting to £79,433 (2016 - £40,000) to the Company during the year.

During the year ended 1 October 2017 £15,104 was paid to Directors of the company (2016: £14,856) As at 31
October 2017 £38,000 remained unpald to the directors of the company (2016: £4,138),

Other reluted party transactions

1.  Included In trade and other payables are the following related party financial liabllitles:

2017 2016
£ £
&G Roach 23,131 26,161
M Bonner 27,416 .

Terms:

G Roach: The Joan bears Interest at prime overdraft rate. The Interest will be calculated and paid when the loan is
repaid. The loan Is repayable as decided upon from time to time.
M Bonner: The loan bears interest at prime overdraft rate. The Interest will be calculated and pald when the loan s
repaid. The loan Is repayable as decided upon from time to time.

2.  African Projects and Ventures (“APV").

On 31 October 2017 the company’s wholly owned subsidlary Dynamic Intertrade {Pty) Limited {"Dynamic")
entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement in terms of which Dynamic will sell the 49.9% of the allotted and
Issued share capital of APV African Projects and Ventures (Pty} Limited to Misty Rose Properties 11 CC, a company
owned by Mr G Roach for the total sum of ZAR1.00.
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26. Controlling Party Note

There Is no single controlling party. Significant shareholders are listed in the Direttors Report and Business Review.

27. Events Subsequent to 31 October 2017

On 23 November 2017 Mr Rob Scott, an existing Non-Executive Director of the Company, took on the role of
Executive Director. Mr Scott will be responstble for driving growth and seeking acquisitions.

On 1 November 2017 AAA raised £113,035 by way of subscription of 20,000,000 new ordinary shares of 0.1p each
at a price of 0.7p per Subscription Share. The Subscription proceeds will be used to provide additional working
capital,

28. Financial Instruments Risks

The risks posed to the Company are set out in the Strategic Report. The Directors do not consider that there are
any significant changes In the Company’s risk profile.
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